


Vision

Mission
We aim to be the most efficient provider of business 
process outsourcing services by setting the industry 
standards for cost and quality of services. 

We will grow through acquisition of other business 
process outsourcing companies that can benefit from our 
expertise, as well as through organic growth resulting 
from the strength of our franchise. Our long term 
success will be driven by our relentless focus on 
recruiting and developing the most talented pool of 
human capital in our industry. 

To be the global leader in providing business process 
outsourcing services. 
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

Notice is hereby given that the Eighteenth Annual General Meeting of TRG Pakistan Limited (the 
“Company”) will be held on Friday, November 27, 2020 at 5 p.m. virtually via video-link (as permitted by 
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan). Instructions with regard to participation appear in 
the notes below. While convening the AGM, through video-link, the Company will observe the quorum 
provisions and will comply with all the regulatory requirements.

Ordinary Business

1. To confirm the Minutes of the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on November 25, 
2019.

2. To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the Company together with 
the Directors’ and Auditors’ Reports for the year ended June 30, 2020.

3. To appoint the Auditors for the ensuing year ending June 30, 2021 and fix their remuneration.

Other Business

4. To transact any other business as may be placed before the meeting with the permission of the 
Chair.

N O T E S:

1. As permitted by circular No. 05 of 2020 issued by SECP and in the interest of the Company’s 
shareholders, Directors and employees, the AGM will be held virtually via video-link. 

 a) To attend the AGM through the video-link members are requested to register themselves 
by providing the following information through email at agm2020@trgpcorp.com at least 48 
hours before the AGM.

 b) Members are registered, after necessary verification as per the above requirement, will be 
provided a video-link by the Company via email.

 c) The login facility will remain open from 5:00 p.m. till the end of AGM.

 d) The members can also provide comments / suggestions for the proposed agenda items of 
the Annual General Meeting by emailing the same to agm2020@trgpcorp.com.

By Order of the Board

Rahat Lateef
Company SecretaryKarachi, November 06, 2020

Shareholder 
Name 

Folio / 
CDC No. 

CNIC 
Number 

Cell Number Registered 
email address 

 
 

    



08 TRG Pakistan Limited

2. The share transfer books of the Company will remain closed from November 20, 2020 to 
November 27, 2020 (both days inclusive). Transfers received by our registrars, Messrs THK 
Associates (Pvt.) Limited, 1st Floor, 40-C, Block-6, P.E.C.H.S., Karachi at the close of business on 
November 19, 2020 will be treated in time for the purpose of attending the meeting.

3. A member entitled to attend and vote at this meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend, 
speak, and vote in his place at the meeting.  A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

4. The instrument appointing a proxy and the power of attorney, or other authority under which it 
is signed, or a notarially certified copy of such power of attorney must be deposited at the 
registered office of the Company at least 48 hours before the time of the meeting.

5. The Company shall provide the video link facility to those member(s) who hold minimum 10% 
shareholding of the total paid-up capital and resident of city other than Karachi where Company’s 
Annual General Meeting is taking place, upon request. Such member(s) should submit request in 
writing to the Company at least ten days before the date of the meeting.

6. Members are requested to notify any change in their address immediately.

7. CDC account holders will further have to follow the under mentioned guidelines as laid down in 
Circular No. 1 dated January 26, 2000 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of 
Pakistan.

 A. For attending meeting:

 (i) In case of individuals, the account holder or the sub-account holder and / or the person 
whose securities are in group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the 
regulations, shall authenticate his / her identity by showing his / her original Computerized 
National Identity Card (CNIC) at the time of attending the meeting.

 (ii) In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors resolution / power of attorney with 
specimen signature of the nominee shall be produced (unless it has been provided earlier) 
at the time of meeting.

 B. For appointing proxies

 (i) In case of individuals the account holder or sub-account holder and / or the person whose 
securities are in group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the 
regulations, shall submit the proxy form as per the above requirement.

 (ii) The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC 
numbers shall be mentioned on the form.

 (iii) Attested copies of CNIC of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with the 
proxy form.

 (iv) The proxy shall produce his / her original CNIC at the time of the meeting.

 (v) In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolutions / power of attorney with 
specimen signature shall be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) along with proxy 
form to the Company.
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I am pleased to provide an update to our shareholders on the performance of their Board.

The Board is well balanced and diverse and includes members with the training and experience to 
analyze complex financial issues and manage risk. 

The evaluation of the Board’s performance is assessed on key areas where the Board provides high 
level oversight, including the strategic process; key business drivers and performance milestones, the 
global economic environment and competitive context in which the Company operates. I am happy to 
report that the Board played a key role in all of these areas and continues to provide leadership and 
effective oversight.

The Board has laid down policies and procedures that ensure a professional corporate environment 
that promotes timely disclosure, accountability, high ethical standards, and compliance with applicable 
laws, regulations and corporate governance. During the year under review, the Board has effectively 
discharged its responsibility towards the Company and participated in all strategic affairs carefully.  All 
quarterly, half yearly and annual financial results were reviewed and Board also played a key role in 
monitoring of management performance and focus on major risk areas. 

The Board has ensured that an adequate system of internal control is in place and its regular 
assessment is carried out. The Board has prepared and approved the Directors’ report and has ensured 
that the Directors’ report is published with the quarterly, half yearly and annual financial statements of 
the Company and the contents of the Directors’ report are in accordance with the requirement of 
applicable laws and regulations.

Lastly, I would like to extend my heartfelt gratitude and appreciation to the Board Members for their 
commendable performance throughout the year. Moving forward, I am confident that the Company has 
all the necessary ingredients to achieve the expectations of all its stakeholders.

             
     Peter H.R. Riepenhausen
Karachi: November 05, 2020      Chairman

Chairman’s Review Report
For the year ended June 30, 2020
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Your Directors are pleased to present the Financial Statements of TRG Pakistan Limited (“the 
Company”) for the year ended June 30, 2020. 

Key Developments

Fiscal year 2020 has been a period of significant growth and success for TRG. We are pleased to report 
that one of our portfolio companies, IBEX Limited, completed its initial public offering on Nasdaq 
Global Market on August 07, 2020. The post money valuation of IBEX at the time of the listing was 
approximately $350 million, with total amount raised in the IPO, prior to expenses, of approximately 
$90 million.  The successful listing of IBEX demonstrates the Board’s commitment to our shareholders 
of maximizing value through monetization of our assets in the near term.

One of our portfolio companies in the enterprise software industry signed a pay-for-performance, 
five-year service agreement with a large US telecommunications provider in May 2020.  The service fees 
from this agreement are expected to generate approximately $100 million in revenues in fiscal year 
2021.  Since the signing of the agreement, the monthly revenues of the portfolio company have more 
than doubled.  As a result of the enhanced scale and profitability, we are targeting a partial monetization 
of the portfolio company during 2021.  

We are also actively assessing monetization alternatives for our health insurance marketing company 
and have retained financial advisors for this purpose. We hope to make significant progress in this 
regard in the next few months and report back to our shareholders.

Lastly, we are now accounting for our interest in our portfolio company, The Resource Group 
International Limited (TRGIL), under the equity method, as required under IAS 28. During fiscal year 
2020, our voting interest in TRGIL changed from 57.16% to 46.03% as a result of conversion of 
24,725,843 Class B Non-Voting Common Shares into Class A Common Shares. This conversion has no 
impact on our economic interest or our fully diluted shareholding in TRGIL. However, due to the 
dilution in voting interest, TRGIL is no longer a “subsidiary”, as per the Companies Act 2017, and hence 
the only set of financial statements being presented are the Company’s single set of financial statements. 
Please refer to note 1.3 of the Company’s financial statements for further details. In addition to these 
financial statements, and as further detail, we are also providing financial highlights of TRGIL and its 
subsidiaries.    

Results of TRG International Limited (Associated Company)

We are excited to share the operational results of TRGIL and its subsidiaries for the fiscal year 2020. 
TRGIL continued its impressive growth with top and bottom line momentum. Its unaudited 
consolidated revenues reached $600 million, representing a 16% increase over the same period last 
year. This growth was broad based across almost all of the portfolio.

IBEX was noteworthy in its revenue growth trajectory during FY20, as its revenues increased to $405 
million, representing a 10% growth over the same period in fiscal 2019. The improvement in margins 
was equally significant, with EBITDA* increasing from $36 million to $54 million. IBEX continues to 
transition away from revenues delivered from onshore locations to more profitable nearshore and 
offshore facilities. The improvement in service delivery mix, coupled with the company’s wins of new 
logos, especially in the higher growth technology sector, has helped generate significant margins and 
continued to provide top and bottom-line momentum.  The successful IPO in August will allow IBEX to 
make significant capital investments to scale further.

Report of the Directors
For the Year ended June 30, 2020
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Our health insurance marketing company continued its impressive growth and revenues increased from 
$65 million to $113 million. This increase was a result of the continued investment in business and 
expansion of service delivery locations. This larger scale has also translated into higher profitability, with 
EBITDA* increasing from $28 million to $43 million. The portfolio company has successfully addressed 
COVID-related headwinds with a robust work-at-home “WAH” operational delivery model, which has 
allowed for operational results to be at similar levels to an on-site environment.  Moving forward, the 
company plans to further invest in technology and agent training and move to an entirely location 
agnostic WAH model. Additionally, the company was successful in closing a funding agreement with its 
existing lender, which doubled its working capital line to $200 million. As a result, the company has 
adequate capital available for growth and expansion for the foreseeable future.

Our enterprise software portfolio company continues to execute on plan and achieved a significant win 
with the signing of the pay-for-performance, five-year service agreement in May 2020. Its current 
revenue runrate, as a result, is approximately $200 million and provides the Company with scale and 
profitability. Further, the Company is in multiple discussions with existing and new clients for enterprise 
wide rollout of its services, with the objective of securing additional revenue wins during fiscal year 
2021.

TRGIL’s stake in its operating subsidiaries is reflected in its financial statements as investment in 
portfolio companies and carried at fair value.  TRGIL’s audited results for FY20 reflect gross assets of 
$388 million and Net Asset Value of $262.3 million (adjusted for Series A Preferred Shares).  As a result, 
according to these financial statements, TRG Pakistan’s book value is Rupees 23.4 billion or Rupees 43 
per share.

A three-year summary of TRGIL’s consolidated performance is stated below. For further details, 
including summarized balance sheets, please refer to the section “Supplementary Disclosure of TRGIL” 
in the Annual Report.

2020 2019 2018

Revenue
Customer Experience 405.1 368.4 342.2
Health Insurance Marketing 113.1 64.7 34.9
Enterprise Software 82.2 82.1 68.6
Others 0.3 0.4 0.4

600.7 515.6 446.1

Adjusted EBITDA
Customer Experience 54.1 36.3 4.3
Health Insurance Marketing 42.8 27.8 9.1
Enterprise Software (43.0) (23.6) (18.3)
Others (0.3) 0.0 0.2

53.5 40.5 (4.6)

---------------------- (US$ millions) ----------------------

*EBITDA is Earnings before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization, adjusted for any one-time/ non-recurring items
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TRG Pakistan Limited Financial Statements

The Company’s stake in TRGIL is reflected in its financial statements as investment and carried at “Fair 
Value through OCI – subsidiary” till June 15, 2020. After June 15, 2020 the investment is equity 
accounted in accordance with applicable financial reporting framework in Pakistan. The value of the 
Company’s share in TRGIL as of June 30, 2020 is Rupees 21.8 billion. This value was Rupees 16.4 billion 
on June 30, 2019. This represents an increase of Rupees 5.4 billion during the year and an overall 
increase that is nearly ten times the value of its original investment. In addition to the Company’s stake 
in TRGIL, it also has other assets of Rupees 1.6 billion and liabilities of Rupees 3.9 billion resulting in net 
assets of Rupees 19.4 billion. 

The Company recognized income of Rupees 237.2 million in its income statement, whereas it incurred 
expenses of Rupees 234.4 million. The share of profit from associates for the 15 day period was Rs.86.9 
million. Tax expense amounting to Rupees 13.5 million including deferred tax expense of Rupees 13.1 
million was incurred during the year. As a result, the Company posted a net profit of Rupees 76.2 
million for the year ended June 30, 2020.

Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework

As required by the Corporate Governance Regulations, the directors are pleased to report the 
following:

a) The financial statements prepared by the management of the Company present fairly its state of 
affairs, the result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity;

b) Proper books of account of the Company have been maintained;

c) Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial 
statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment;

d) International Accounting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in preparation of 
financial statements;

e) The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and 
monitored;

f) There are no significant doubts upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern;

g) There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance, as 
detailed in the listing regulations;

h) The Directors, CEO, CFO, Company Secretary and their spouses and minor children did not 
trade in shares of the company except as disclosed in the Pattern of Shareholding; and

i) The value of investments of the recognized provident fund for TRG Pakistan Limited as at June 30, 
2020 was Rupees 1.5 million (unaudited) and as at June 30, 2019 was Rupees 1.2 million 
(unaudited).
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Board of Directors

The Company encourages representation of independent non-executive directors and directors 
representing minority interests on its Board of Directors. At present the Board includes the following 
Directors:

Board Meetings during the Year

During the year four meetings of the Board of Directors were held. Attendance by the Directors was 
as follows:

Board Sub-Committees

S. No. Category Name of Director
1. Executive Directors Muhammad Ziaullah Khan Chishti

Mohammed Khaishgi
2. Non-Executive Directors Muhammad Ali Jameel

Patrick McGinnis
John Leone
Peter H.R. Riepenhausen
Ameer S. Qureshi

3. Independent Directors Zafar Iqbal Sobani
Asad Nasir
Sabiha Sultan Ahmad

S. No. Category Name of Member
1. Audit Committee Zafar Iqbal Sobani

Patrick McGinnis 
Ameer S. Qureshi
Asad Nasir

2. HR Recruitment & 
Remuneration Committee

Sabiha Sultan Ahmad
John Leone
Peter H.R. Riepenhausen
Mohammed Khaishgi

Name of Director Meetings attended
Mr. Muhammad Ziaullah Chishti 4
Mr. Muhammad Ali Jameel 3
Mr. Mohammed Khaishgi 4
Mr. John Leone 3
Mr. Peter H. R. Riepenhausen 3
Mr. Ameer Shabu Qureshi 4
Mr. Patrick McGinnis 2
Mr. Zafar Iqbal Sobani 4
Mr. Asad Nasir 4
Ms. Sabiha Sultan Ahmad 2
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Muhammad Ali Jameel
Director

Muhammad Ziaullah Khan Chishti
Chief Executive

Karachi
Dated: November 05, 2020

Board Audit Committee Meetings during the Year

Following was the Board Audit Committee attendance:

Board HR Recruitment & Compensation Committee Meetings during the Year

No meeting of the HR Recruitment & Compensation Committee was held during the year.

Appropriations

The directors do not recommend any appropriations for the current year.

Earnings per Share

The company recognized earnings per share of Rupee 0.140. 

Auditor

The retiring auditor Messrs KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co., Chartered Accountants, being eligible, offer 
themselves for re-appointment. As suggested by the Audit Committee, the Board recommends their 
re-appointment for the ensuing year ending June 30, 2021.

Shareholding Pattern

A statement showing pattern of shareholding of the Company and relevant additional information as at 
June 30, 2020 is included in this report.

Shareholder Acknowledgment

We are thankful to our shareholders for their continued support of our unique business model, and for 
their trust and confidence in the management team. From our side, we feel greatly honored at having 
been given the opportunity to place Pakistan on the map in this industry. 

Name of Director Meetings attended
Mr. Zafar Iqbal Sobani 4
Mr. Patrick McGinnis 2
Mr. Ameer Shabu Qureshi 4
Mr. Asad Nasir 4
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Summarized Consolidated Financial Information of TRGIL
For the year ended June 30

2020 2019 2018

Revenue
Customer Experience 405.1 368.4 342.2
Health Insurance Marketing 113.1 64.7 34.9
Enterprise Software 82.2 82.1 68.6
Others 0.3 0.4 0.4

600.7 515.6 446.1

Adjusted EBITDA
Customer Experience 54.1 36.3 4.3
Health Insurance Marketing 42.8 27.8 9.1
Enterprise Software (43.0) (23.6) (18.3)
Others (0.3) 0.0 0.2

53.5 40.5 (4.6)

Property and equipment 124.1 117.8 30.4
Trade and other receivables 246.5 179.7 118.4
Cash and bank balances 73.9 87.6 50.9

Borrowings 364.7 306.6 206.3
Trade and other payables 110.3 71.5 63.2

*EBITDA is Earnings before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization, adjusted for any one-time/ non-recurring items

---------------------- (US$ millions) ----------------------
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Statement Of Compliance with Listed Companies
(Code Of Corporate Governance) Regulations 2019
For the year ended June 30, 2020

Name of Company: TRG Pakistan Limited (“the Company”)
Year ended: June 30, 2020

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:

1. The total number of directors are 10 as per the following:

 a. Male:  9
 b. Female:  1

2. The composition of board is as follows:

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven 
listed companies, including this Company. 

4. The company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been 
taken to disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and 
procedures. 

5. The board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant 
policies of the company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the 
significant policies alongwith their date of approval or updating is maintained by the Company.

6. All the powers of the board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have 
been taken by board/shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these 
Regulations. 

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director 
elected by the Board for this purpose. The board has complied with the requirements of Act and 
the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the 
Board. 

S. No. Category Name of Director
1. Independent 

Directors  
Zafar Iqbal Sobani
Asad Nasir
Sabiha Sultan Ahmad (Female Director)

2. Other Non-Executive 
Directors

Muhammad Ali Jameel
John Leone
Peter H.R. Riepenhausen (Chairman of the Board)
Patrick McGinnis
Ameer S. Qureshi

3. Executive Directors Muhammad Ziaullah Khan Chishti (CEO)
Mohammadullah Khan Khaishgi
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8. The Board have a formal policy that no remuneration is paid to the Chief Executive and directors 
of the Company

9. Out of ten directors, the following three directors have obtained a certificate of Director’s 
Training Program: 

 1. Zafar Iqbal Sobani 
 2. Asad Nasir
 3. Sabiha Sultan Ahmed

 The following three directors are exempt from the requirement of Director’s Training Program:

 1. Muhammad Ziaullah Chishti 
 2. Peter H.R. Riepenhausen
 3. Muhammad Ali Jameel

 The remaining four directors will undertake the Director’s Training Program within the stipulated 
time. 

10. There was no change of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit 
during the year. 

11. The financial statements of the Company were duly endorsed by CEO and CFO before approval 
of the Board.

12. The board has formed committees comprising of members given below: 

 Audit Committee: 

 - Zafar Iqbal Sobani    Chairman
 - Patrick McGinnis   Member
 - Ameer S. Qureshi   Member
 - Asad Nasir   Member

 HR Recruitment & Remuneration Committee: 

 - Sabiha Sultan Ahmad    Chairman
 - John Leone   Member
 - Peter H.R. Riepenhausen   Member
 - Mohammadullah Khan Khaishgi   Member

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised 
to the committee for compliance.

14. The frequency of meetings of the Committee were as per following:

 (a) Audit Committee; four meetings of the Committee were held during the year.
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15. The Board has setup an effective internal audit function. Personnel of the internal audit 
department are suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the 
policies and procedures of the Company.

16. The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory 
rating under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
Pakistan and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners 
are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of 
ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the 
partners of the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and 
non-dependent children) of the chief executive officer, chief financial officer, head of internal audit, 
company secretary or director of the company;

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide 
other services except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other regulatory 
requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this 
regard;

18. We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations have 
been complied with; 

 Regulation 6:
 The three elected independent directors have requisite competencies, skills, knowledge and 

experience to discharge and execute their duties competently, as per applicable laws and 
regulations under which hereby fulfil the necessary requirements; not warrant the appointment of 
a fourth independent director.

19. Explanation for non-compliance with requirements, other than regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 
36 is below:

 Regulation 28:
 There were no meetings of Board HR and Remuneration Committee during the financial year 

ended June 30, 2020 as there was no agenda to discuss and recommend to the Board. 

On behalf of the Board of Directors

ZIAULLAH KHAN CHISHTI   PETER H.R. RIEPENHAUSEN
Chief Executive     Chairman

Karachi
Dated:  November 05, 2020
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To the members of TRG Pakistan Limited
Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of 
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of 
TRG Pakistan Limited (the Company) for the year ended 30 June 2020 in accordance with the 
requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the 
Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of 
the Company’s compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to 
highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to 
inquiries of the Company’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to 
comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the 
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit 
approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal 
control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal 
controls, the Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon 
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and 
approval, its related party transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this 
requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors 
upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. 

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement 
of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company’s compliance, in all material respects, with 
the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended 30 June 
2020. 

  

Karachi

Date: November 05, 2020 

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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Pattern of Shareholding
As at June 30, 2020

No. of 
Shareholders

From To
Total Shares

Held
559 1 100 12565

1331 101 500 607036
1345 501 1000 1299655
2461 1001 5000 6959953
725 5001 10000 5907408
260 10001 15000 3398433
166 15001 20000 3064693
130 20001 25000 3075537
63 25001 30000 1809284
45 30001 35000 1492628
48 35001 40000 1843326
31 40001 45000 1323959
73 45001 50000 3609996
27 50001 55000 1432491
16 55001 60000 936823
11 60001 65000 689179
9 65001 70000 624500

19 70001 75000 1407779
15 75001 80000 1183083
7 80001 85000 589000

14 85001 90000 1242339
8 90001 95000 742000

37 95001 100000 3678844
8 100001 105000 833000
8 105001 110000 866317
7 110001 115000 797115

11 115001 120000 1312988
11 120001 125000 1362987
3 125001 130000 385112
4 130001 135000 527989
4 135001 140000 548708
3 140001 145000 427000

13 145001 150000 1943168
7 150001 155000 1077065
3 155001 160000 471113
3 160001 165000 488000
7 165001 170000 1173187
4 170001 175000 700000
2 175001 180000 358000
4 180001 185000 734500
3 185001 190000 562200
6 190001 195000 1165000

15 195001 200000 2998500
1 200001 205000 205000
1 205001 210000 210000
5 210001 215000 1070000
3 215001 220000 654952
3 220001 225000 671000
3 230001 235000 697082
2 235001 240000 479000
2 240001 245000 489904

Number of Shares
No. of 

Shareholders
From To

Total Shares
Held

6 245001 250000 1499000
2 250001 255000 504000
1 260001 265000 265000
2 265001 270000 533500
5 270001 275000 1371500
2 285001 290000 578748
6 295001 300000 1800000
3 300001 305000 906009
1 310001 315000 313879
1 315001 320000 315042
3 320001 325000 974500
1 325001 330000 329331
4 330001 335000 1331481
1 335001 340000 340000
2 340001 345000 684000
1 345001 350000 350000
1 350001 355000 354500
2 355001 360000 720000
1 370001 375000 374500
2 380001 385000 766500
2 385001 390000 773500
2 395001 400000 796000
2 400001 405000 805170
1 405001 410000 410000
1 415001 420000 419500
2 420001 425000 845047
1 430001 435000 435000
3 435001 440000 1317572
2 440001 445000 885000
6 445001 450000 2697000
1 455001 460000 456500
1 465001 470000 468500
3 470001 475000 1420157
6 495001 500000 3000000
1 515001 520000 520000
1 520001 525000 525000
1 535001 540000 539500
2 540001 545000 1088912
4 545001 550000 2198500
1 555001 560000 556500
1 580001 585000 582840
1 590001 595000 592500
3 595001 600000 1799904
1 615001 620000 620000
1 625001 630000 630000
1 635001 640000 640000
3 645001 650000 1950000
1 680001 685000 685000
1 690001 695000 694500
3 695001 700000 2100000
1 705001 710000 708500

Number of Shares
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No. of 
Shareholders

From To
Total Shares

Held
2 720001 725000 1445000
2 725001 730000 1456500
1 735001 740000 738500
1 740001 745000 745000
1 745001 750000 750000
1 755001 760000 760000
1 765001 770000 767548
2 775001 780000 1557475
1 825001 830000 828000
1 870001 875000 875000
2 880001 885000 1768500
1 890001 895000 891500
1 895001 900000 897290
1 905001 910000 907500
1 915001 920000 918500
1 920001 925000 923508
1 930001 935000 933585
6 995001 1000000 6000000
1 1025001 1030000 1030000
1 1065001 1070000 1068000
2 1095001 1100000 2200000
1 1145001 1150000 1149500
1 1155001 1160000 1157324
2 1195001 1200000 2398500
1 1210001 1215000 1214000
1 1230001 1235000 1235000
1 1245001 1250000 1250000
2 1260001 1265000 2526673
1 1345001 1350000 1350000
1 1420001 1425000 1423500
1 1460001 1465000 1460500
1 1495001 1500000 1500000
1 1500001 1505000 1501486
1 1510001 1515000 1513500
1 1670001 1675000 1674491
1 1785001 1790000 1790000
2 1855001 1860000 3720000
1 1925001 1930000 1927500
1 1955001 1960000 1955694

Number of Shares
No. of 

Shareholders
From To

Total Shares
Held

1 3495001 3500000 3500000
1 3815001 3820000 3817500
1 3885001 3890000 3887000
2 3995001 4000000 8000000
1 4380001 4385000 4384000
1 4915001 4920000 4917320
1 5955001 5960000 5959417
1 6075001 6080000 6075051
1 6205001 6210000 6209405
1 7230001 7235000 7234245
1 7295001 7300000 7300000
1 7330001 7335000 7332000
1 7495001 7500000 7500000
1 7790001 7795000 7793000
1 7995001 8000000 8000000
1 8360001 8365000 8361500
1 8475001 8480000 8477500
1 8730001 8735000 8730832
1 10000001 10005000 10001100
1 10095001 10100000 10100000
1 11495001 11500000 11500000
1 18295001 18300000 18300000
1 19750001 19755000 19750500
1 28080001 28085000 28083760
1 46505001 46510000 46509067
1 76405001 76410000 76408289

7745 545,390,665Company Total

Number of Shares

2 1995001 2000000 4000000
1 2310001 2315000 2312500
1 2340001 2345000 2345000
1 2365001 2370000 2368099
1 2415001 2420000 2416000
1 2440001 2445000 2444000
1 2610001 2615000 2614500
1 2765001 2770000 2767016
1 2770001 2775000 2775000
1 2990001 2995000 2992000
1 3080001 3085000 3080500
1 3320001 3325000 3324000
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Category of Shareholding
As at June 30, 2020

Categories Share Holders Share Holding Percentage 

DIRECTORS, CEO & CHILDREN 14 86,477,056 15.8560

ASSOCIATED COMPANIES 2 59,000 0.0108

BANKS, DFI & NBFI 5 28,841,036 5.2881

INSURANCE COMPANIES 4 551,612 0.1011

MUTUAL FUNDS 8 17,450,517 3.1996

GENERAL PUBLIC (LOCAL) 7222 213,095,650 39.0721

GENERAL PUBLIC (FOREIGN) 360 24,705,876 4.5299

OTHERS 129 173,767,918 31.8612

FOREIGN COMPANIES 1 442,000 0.0810

Company Total 7,745 545,390,665 100

Detail of Associated Companies Number of Share Held

TPL HOLDINGS (PRIVATE) LIMITED 59,000

59,000

Detail of Directors, CEO and their spouse and minor children Number of Shares Held

MR. MUHAMMAD ZIAULLAH CHISTI (*) 84,885,789

MR. MUHAMMAD ALI JAMEEL 298

MR. MUHAMMADULLA KHAISHGI 612,840

MR. JOHN LEONE 3

MR. PETER H. R. RIEPENHAUSEN 877,617

MR. AMEER S. SHABU QURESHI 3

MR. PATRICK MCGINNIS 3

MR. ZAFAR IQBAL SOBANI 100,000

MR. ASAD NASIR 500

MS. SABIHA SULTAN AHMAD 3

86,477,056
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Pattern of Shareholding
As Per Requirement of Code of Corporate Governance
As at June 30, 2020

JAHANGIR SIDDIQUI & CO. LTD. 47,577,067
J S BANK LIMITED. 28,083,760
JS INFOCOM LIMITED 19,750,500
AKD SECURITIES LIMITED 11,500,000
MOHAMMAD MUNIR MOHAMMAD AHMED KHANANI SECURITIES LIMITED 10,001,100
CDC - TRUSTEE AKD OPPORTUNITY FUND 7,234,245
PEARL SECURITIES LIMITED 11,126,725
CDC - TRUSTEE GOLDEN ARROW STOCK FUND 5,959,417
DJM SECURITIES LIMITED 4,384,000
MUHAMMAD ANAF KAPADIA SECURITIES (SMC-PRIVATE) LIMITED 4,000,000
CDC - TRUSTEE FAYSAL MTS FUND - MT 3,887,000
MOHAMMAD MUNIR MOHAMMAD AHMED KHANANI SECURITIES LTD. - MF 3,080,500
MRA SECURITIES LIMITED 2,614,500
SHERMAN SECURITIES (PRIVATE) LIMITED 2,000,000
ZAHID LATIF KHAN SECURITIES (PVT) LTD. 1,927,500
LSE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED - MT 1,860,000
SIGN SOURCE LIMITED 1,423,500
ADAM SECURITIES LIMITED 1,214,000
LAKHANI SECURITIES (PVT) LTD. 1,200,000
NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN 750,276
FAWAD YUSUF SECURITIES (PVT.) LIMITED 708,500
BIPL SECURITIES LIMITED 650,000
TOPLINE SECURITIES LIMITED - MT 548,500
MAYARI SECURITIES (PVT) LIMITED 468,500
MULTILINE SECURITIES (PVT) LIMITED 456,500
MRA SECURITIES LIMITED - MF 447,000
SAAO CAPITAL (PVT) LIMITED 400,170
TAURUS SECURITIES LIMITED 374,500
JS GLOBAL CAPITAL LIMITED - MF 354,500
GROWTH SECURITIES (PVT) LTD. 334,000
A.I. SECURITIES (PRIVATE) LIMITED 300,000
BHAYANI SECURITIES (PVT) LTD. 275,000
GAZIPURA SECURITIES & SERVICES (PRIVATE) LIMITED 266,500
DALAL SECURITIES (PVT) LTD. 225,000
ABA ALI HABIB SECURITIES (PVT) LIMITED 212,000
SAAO CAPITAL (PVT) LIMITED 170,000
Y.H. SECURITIES (PVT.) LTD. 165,000
SEVEN STAR SECURITIES (PVT.) LTD. 162,500
VENUS SECURITIES (PVT.) LIMITED 155,000
RAH SECURITIES (PVT) LIMITED 153,000
BAWANY SECURITIES (PRIVATE) LIMITED 149,500
ALTAF ADAM SECURITIES (PVT) LTD. 143,000
R.T. SECURITIES (PVT) LIMITED 126,112
STANDARD CAPITAL SECURITIES (PRIVATE) LIMITED 125,000
CDC - TRUSTEE AKD INDEX TRACKER FUND 114,855
CDC - TRUSTEE FAYSAL STOCK FUND 110,000
CDC - TRUSTEE FAYSAL ASSET ALLOCATION FUND 100,000
FDM CAPITAL SECURITIES (PVT) LIMITED 50,000
MULTILINE SECURITIES (PVT) LIMITED - MF 45,500
AZEE SECURITIES (PRIVATE) LIMITED 44,000
ASDA SECURITIES (PVT.) LTD. 41,500
MAAN SECURITIES (PRIVATE) LIMITED - MT 37,000
NH SECURITIES (PVT) LIMITED. 32,909

Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non-Banking Finance Institutions,
Insurance Companies, Modarabas, Brokerage House and  Mutual Funds

Number of Shares 
Held 
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ADAM SECURITIES LTD. - MT 31,000
DAWOOD EQUITIES LTD. 25,000
SEVEN STAR SECURITIES (PVT.) LTD. 25,000
CMA SECURITIES (PVT) LIMITED 25,000
PEARL SECURITIES LIMITED - MF 19,000
CDC - TRUSTEE FIRST CAPITAL MUTUAL FUND 15,000
GMI CAPITAL SECURITIES (PVT) LTD. 15,000
APEX FINANCIAL SERVICES (PVT.) LIMITED 13,500
BIPL SECURITIES LIMITED - MF 11,500
TRUST SECURITIES & BROKERAGE LIMITED - MF 11,000
ZAFAR MOTI CAPITAL SECURITIES (PVT) LTD. 9,193
CAPITAL FINANCIAL SERVICES (PVT.) LIMITED 8,000
MOHAMMAD MUNIR MOHAMMAD AHMED KHANANI SECURITIES LIMITED 7,500
DAWOOD EQUITIES LIMITED - MF 7,500
ESCORTS INVESTMENT BANK LIMITED 6,500
IMGC GLOBAL (PVT.) LIMITED 6,122
WASI SECURITIES (SMC-PVT) LTD. 6,001
MUHAMMAD AHMAD NADEEM SECURITIES (SMC-PVT.) LIMITED 5,950
TARIQ CAPITAL (PRIVATE) LIMITED 5,000
AHSAM SECURITIES (PVT) LIMITED 5,000
INTERMARKET SECURITIES LIMITED - MF 5,000
PRUDENTIAL DISCOUNT & GUARANTEE HOUSE LIMITED 3,000
M. F. STOCKS (PRIVATE) LIMITED 3,000
N. U. A. SECURITIES (PRIVATE) LIMITED - MF 3,000
DR. ARSLAN RAZAQUE SECURITIES (PVT.) LIMITED 2,836
FAIR EDGE SECURITIES (PRIVATE) LIMITED 2,500
B & B SECURITIES (PRIVATE) LIMITED 2,500
STRONGMAN SECURITIES (PVT.) LIMITED 2,000
CREATIVE CAPITAL SECURITIES (PRIVATE) LIMITED - MF 1,000
ASKARI SECURITIES LIMITED - MF 1,000
EXCEL INSURANCE CO.LTD. 612
PRUDENTIAL SECURITIES LIMITED 534
SONERI BANK LIMITED 500
SHAFFI SECURITIES (PVT) LIMITED 500
AKD SECURITIES LIMITED - AKD TRADE 500
R.A. SECURITIES (PVT.) LIMITED 500
ADAM SECURITIES LTD. - MF 500
EXCEL SECURITIES (PVT.) LTD. 450
MUHAMMAD AMER RIAZ SECURITIES (PVT) LTD. 300
INTERMARKET SECURITIES LIMITED 109
IGI FINEX SECURITIES LIMITED 1
H.S.Z. SECURITIES (PRIVATE) LIMITED 1
Total: 177,807,745

Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non-Banking Finance Institutions,
Insurance Companies, Modarabas, Brokerage House and  Mutual Funds

Number of Shares 
Held 
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Shareholders Holding 5% or More Voting Interest Number of Shares Held Voting Interest

MR. MUHAMMAD ZIAULLAH KHAN CHISHTI (*) 84,885,789 15.56
JAHANGIR SIDDIQUI & CO. LTD. 47,577,067 8.72
J.S. BANK LIMITED 28,083,760 5.15

160,546,616 29.44

Details of movement in the shares
of Director / CEO and their spouces

and minor children 
Designation

Opening 
Balance July 1, 

2019

Closing 
Balance 
June 30, 

2020

MR. MUHAMMAD ZIAULLAH KHAN CHISHTI (*) CEO and Director 84,833,789 84,885,789

MR. MUHAMMAD ALI JAMEEL Director 298 298

MR. MUHAMMADULLA KHAISHGI Director 612,840 612,840

MR. JOHN LEONE Director 3 3

MR. PETER H. R. RIEPENHAUSEN Chairman and Director 877,617 877,617

MR. AMEER S. SHABU QURESHI Director 3 3

MR. PATRICK MCGINNIS Director 3 3

MR. ZAFAR IQBAL SOBANI Director 100,000 100,000

MR. ASAD NASIR Director 500 500

MS. SABIHA SULTAN AHMAD Director 3 3

86,425,056 86,477,056

(*) During the year, Mr. Muhammad Ziaullah Khan Chishti released 52,000/- shares through MTS.

Pattern of Shareholding
As Per Requirement of Code of Corporate Governance
As at June 30, 2020
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Historical Financial Information

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

………………………………………………………….. (Rupees in '000) ……………………………………………………………………

Revenue 237,176 240,969 228,516 214,386 167,735 46,050 169 1,388 2,086 1,002

Expenses - net (234,437) 238,579 445,431 207,984 58,685 39,933 (24,624) (2,006,107) 26,799 71,740

Taxation (13,523) 538 626 1,043 11,888 4,138 - 173 (173) -

Net Profit / (Loss) 76,165 1,855 (217,541) 5,359 97,162 1,979 (24,455) 2,007,668 (24,889) (70,738)

Basic EPS 0.140 0.003 (0.399) 0.010 0.18 0.004 (0.06) 5.21 (0.06) (0.18)

Non - Current Assets 21,778,686 17,972,350 16,138,572 15,007,481 13,849,915 12,842,934 12,258,314 3,304,027 1,105,316 1,006,387

Current Assets 1,583,862 1,685 1,634,597 226,711 691,423 49,363 3,872 3,361 9,113 13,527

Share Capital and Reserves 19,404,372 15,153,739 14,858,733 12,779,626 12,353,686 10,814,799 10,120,200 3,145,514 1,018,256 950,653

Non - Current Liabilities 3,929,183 2,791,380 2,830,461 2,228,329 2,106,344 1,983,595 1,957,432 - 173 -

Current Liabilities 29,127 28,916 83,975 226,237 81,308 93,903 184,554 161,874 96,000 69,261

Dividend - - - - - - - - - -

Market share price 28.24 16.36 28.64 40.09 33.55 30.55 14.03 10.19 3.42 2.56

Number of Employees 1 1 1 1 1 3 3 3 4 4
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the members of TRG Pakistan Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of TRG Pakistan Limited (the Company), which 
comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2020, and the statement of profit or loss and 
other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the 
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and 
explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the 
audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
statement of financial position, statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the 
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part 
thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the 
information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and 
respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 30 June 2020 and of the 
profit and other comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then 
ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in 
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of 
the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of 
Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan 
(the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of 
our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not 
provide a separate opinion on these matters.



36 TRG Pakistan Limited

Following is the Key audit matter:

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information 
included in the Annual Report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report 
thereon.
 
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the Other 
Information and, in doing so, consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with 
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement 
of this Other Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

S
No.

Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our 
audit

1. Valuation of investment in equity 
interest of an unquoted associated 
company

Refer to notes 1.3, 3.2 and 5 to the 
financial statements. 

During the year, certain non-voting 
shares in the Company’s subsidiary TRG 
International Limited (TRGIL) were 
converted to voting shares resulting in 
dilution of the Company’s voting 
interest to less than 50%. Consequently, 
TRGIL was recognized as associated 
company as per the requirements of 
Companies Act, 2017.

We identified valuation of unquoted 
investment as a key audit matter due to 
its significance to the Company’s 
financial position and involvement of 
inherent uncertainty in estimating its fair 
value.

Our audit procedures to assess valuation of
unquoted investment, amongst others, included 
the following:

• obtaining an understanding of and testing the 
design and operating effectiveness of 
controls established by the Company for 
valuation of unquoted investment;

• evaluating the independent professional 
valuer’s competence, capabilities and 
objectivity;

• obtaining cash flow projections prepared by 
expert engaged by management and assessing 
its reasonableness, testing the mathematical 
accuracy and challenging management’s 
assumptions by comparing them to historical 
results and checking current year’s results 
with prior year forecast and other relevant 
information; and

• involving our own valuation specialist to 
assist us in evaluating the valuation 
techniques, assumptions and methodologies 
used by management, in particular, relating 
to the cash flows projections, growth rates, 
terminal values and discount rates including 
marketability discount and sensitivity analysis 
of key assumptions.
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Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements 
of Companies Act, 2017(XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is 
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to 
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material 
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment 
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override

  of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in 
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures 
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained 
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the 
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
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• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of 
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key 
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes 
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a 
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so 
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 
2017 (XIX of 2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the 
notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) 
and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the 
purpose of the Company’s business; and

d) no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Usher Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Moneeza 
Usman Butt.

Karachi

Date: November 05, 2020 

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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Statement of Financial Position
As at June 30, 2020

June 30, June 30,
2020 2019

Note
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Operating fixed assets 4 59 101
Long term investment 5 21,778,686 16,392,528
Long term loan to related party 6 - 1,579,646
Long term deposit 75 75

21,778,820 17,972,350
Current assets
Current maturity of accrued mark-up 908 -
Current maturity of long term loan 6

6.1
1,579,646 -

Cash and bank balances 7 3,308 1,685
1,583,862 1,685

Total assets 23,362,682 17,974,035

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital and reserves
Authorized share capital 8 7,330,000 7,330,000

Share capital
Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital 8 5,453,907 5,453,907

Revenue reserves
Foreign currency translation reserve 533,376 8,202,725
Fair value reserve - net of deferred tax - 2,022,911
Unappropriated profit / (accumulated losses) 13,417,089 (525,804)

19,404,372 15,153,739
Non-current liability
Deferred tax liability 14 3,929,183 2,791,380

Current liabilities
Accrued and other liabilities 9 9,470 9,529
Payable to related party 10 4,807 4,579
Taxation - net 14,850 14,808

29,127 28,916
Total equity and liabilities 23,362,682 17,974,035

Contingencies and commitments 11

The annexed notes 1 to 23 form an integral part of these financial statements.

------ (Rupees in '000) ------
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June 30, June 30,
2020 2019

Note

Revenue 12 237,176 240,969
Administrative and other expenses 13 (234,437) (238,576)
Operating profit 2,739 2,393

Share of profit in equity accounted investee 5.4 86,949 -
Profit before taxation 89,688 2,393

Taxation 14 (13,523) (538)
Profit for the year 76,165 1,855

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to 
statement of profit or loss 

Equity investments at FVOCI - net of tax 3,338,170 (2,843,683)

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to 
statement of profit or loss 

Foreign currency translation difference 836,298 3,136,834

Total comprehensive income for the year 4,250,633 295,006

Earnings per share - basic and diluted 15 0.140 0.003

The annexed notes 1 to 23 form an integral part of these financial statements.

------ (Rupees in '000) ------

------------ (Rupee) ------------

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended June 30, 2020
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Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended June 30, 2020

Balance as at June 30, 2018 5,453,907 5,065,891 4,866,594 (527,659) 14,858,733

Total comprehensive income
Profit for the year - - - 1,855 1,855
Equity investments at FVOCI - change 

in fair value net of deferred tax - - (2,843,683) - (2,843,683)
Foreign currency translation 

difference - net of related tax - 3,136,834 - - 3,136,834
- 3,136,834 (2,843,683) 1,855 295,006

Balance as at June 30, 2019 5,453,907 8,202,725 2,022,911 (525,804) 15,153,739

Total comprehensive income
Profit for the year - - - 76,165 76,165
Equity investments at FVOCI - change 

in fair value net of deferred tax - - 3,338,170 - 3,338,170
Transfer of reserve related to investment

 at FVOCI - net of deferred tax - (8,505,647) (5,361,081) 13,866,728 -
Foreign currency translation 

difference - net of related tax - 836,298 - - 836,298
- (7,669,349) (2,022,911) 13,942,893 4,250,633

Balance as at June 30, 2020 5,453,907 533,376 - 13,417,089 19,404,372

The annexed notes 1 to 23 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Revenue reservesIssued,
subscribed

and paid-up
capital

Total
Foreign

currency
translation

reserve

 ------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) -------------------------------------------

Fair value 
reserve - 

net of 
deferred tax

Unappropriated 
profit / 

(accumulated 
losses)
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Statement of Cash Flows 
For the year ended June 30, 2020

June 30, June 30,
2020 2019

Note
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash used in operations 16 (24,226) (72,523)
Mark-up income received 26,273 73,541
Taxes paid (424) (5)
Net cash generated from operating activities 1,623 1,013

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property and equipment - (127)
Net cash used in investing activities - (127)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 1,623 886

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 1,685 799

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 7 3,308 1,685

The annexed notes 1 to 23 form an integral part of these financial statements.

------ (Rupees in '000) ------
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended June 30, 2020

1. LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS      
       
1.1  TRG Pakistan Limited ("the Company") was incorporated in Pakistan as a public limited company on December 2, 2002 under the 

repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 and is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The registered office of the Company 
is situated at 18th Floor, Center Point, Off Shaheed-e-Millat Expressway, Karachi, Pakistan. On May 14, 2003 the Company obtained 
a license from the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan ("SECP") to undertake venture capital investment as a 
Non-Banking Finance Company in accordance with the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 
2003 (NBFC Rules). On January 18, 2012 the Company exited from NBFC regime and continues to operate as a listed company.  
      

1.2  The principal activity of the Company is to act as a holding company. The Company through its associate, The Resource Group 
International Limited (TRGIL) has a portfolio of investments primarily in the Technology, IT Enabled Services and Medicare 
Insurance sectors.      

       
1.3  During fiscal year 2020, 24,725,843 Class B Non-Voting Common Shares were converted into Class A Common Shares. The Class 

A Common Shares have similar rights as Class B Common Shares, including similar economic interest in distributions and 
dividends, except that Class A Common Shares have voting rights. As a result of this conversion of Class B Non-Voting Common 
Shares into Class A Common Shares, TRG Pakistan’s voting interest in TRGIL was diluted from 57.16% to 46.03%.  
      

 Due to this dilution in voting interest on June 15, 2020, TRGIL is no longer a subsidiary of the Company as per the requirements 
of section 2(68)(b) of Companies Act, 2017. Hence, management has presented single set financial statements for the year ended 
June 30, 2020 as its only financial statements in accordance with financial reporting framework applicable in Pakistan.  
     

 Management considers that due to the current voting power of 46.03% in TRGIL, the Company has significant influence, therefore, 
investment in TRGIL, which was previously accounted for at FVOCI in accordance with IFRS 9, has now been equity-accounted for, 
in accordance with IAS 28.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION      
       
2.1 Statement of compliance      
       
 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in 

Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan comprise of International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as are notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and 
provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017. Where the provisions of and directives issued under the 
Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been 
followed.      

       
2.2 Basis of measurement      
       
 These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except as otherwise disclosed.  

      
2.3 Functional and presentation currency      
       
 Items included in the financial statements are measured using United States Dollars (US$), the functional currency of the 

Company. However, for ease in local reporting purposes, these  financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees (PKR), which 
is the presentation currency.      

       
2.4 Critical accounting judgments and estimates      
       
 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan requires the 

use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the 
Company's accounting policies.  Actual result may differ from these estimates.      
      

 In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made certain estimates and judgments which are 
significant to the  financial statements relating to fair value determination of long term investment at FVOCI (note 3.3), current 
and deferred tax (note 3.5.1 & 3.5.2).

 Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historic experience and other factors, including expectation of 
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the 
year in which the estimate is revised and in any future year affected. 
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2.4.1 Impact of COVID-19 on financial statements      
       
 In March 2020, the World Health Organization declared the outbreak of COVID-19 as a global pandemic (the “Pandemic”). The 

spread of the Pandemic and consequently imposition of lock down by Federal and Provincial Governments of Pakistan has not 
directly affected the Company. Resultanly there is no significant accounting impact of the Pandemic on these financial statements. 
      

2.5 Standards, amendments and interpretations which became effective during the year    
       

 There are new and amended standards and interpretations that are mandatory for accounting years beginning July 1, 2019 but are 
considered not to be relevant or do not have any significant effect on the Company's financial statements and are therefore not 
stated in these financial statements.      

       
2.6 New / revised accounting standards, amendments to published accounting standards, and interpretations that are 

not yet effective:
       
 The following International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) and amendments and interpretations thereto will be 

effective for periods beginning on or after July 1, 2020:      
       
 - Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting 

Estimates and Errors (effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020). The amendments are intended to 
make the definition of material in IAS 1 easier to understand and are not intended to alter the underlying concept of 
materiality in IFRS Standards. In addition, the IASB has also issued guidance on how to make materiality judgments when 
preparing their general purpose financial statements in accordance with IFRS Standards.    
     

 - On March 29, 2018, the International Accounting Standards Board (the IASB) has issued a revised Conceptual Framework 
for Financial Reporting which is applicable immediately contains changes that will set a new direction for IFRS in the future. 
The Conceptual Framework primarily serves as a tool for the IASB to develop standards and to assist the IFRS 
Interpretations Committee in interpreting them. It does not override the requirements of individual IFRSs and any 
inconsistencies with the revised Framework will be subject to the usual due process – this means that the overall impact 
on standard setting may take some time to crystallize. The companies may use the Framework as a reference for selecting 
their accounting policies in the absence of specific IFRS requirements. In these cases, companies should review those 
policies and apply the new guidance retrospectively as of January 1, 2020, unless the new guidance contains specific scope 
outs.        
  

 - Interest Rate Benchmark Reform which amended IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 is applicable for annual financial periods 
beginning on or after January 1, 2020. The G20 asked the Financial Stability Board (FSB) to undertake a fundamental review 
of major interest rate benchmarks. Following the review, the FSB published a report setting out its recommended reforms 
of some major interest rate benchmarks such as IBORs. Public authorities in many jurisdictions have since taken steps to 
implement those recommendations. This has in turn led to uncertainty about the long-term viability of some interest rate 
benchmarks. In these amendments, the term 'interest rate benchmark reform' refers to the market-wide reform of an 
interest rate benchmark including its replacement with an alternative benchmark rate, such as that resulting from the FSB's 
recommendations set out in its July 2014 report 'Reforming Major Interest Rate Benchmarks' (the reform). The 
amendments may provide relief from the potential effects of the uncertainty caused by the reform.  A company shall apply 
the exceptions to all hedging relationships directly affected by interest rate benchmark reform. The amendments are not 
likely to affect the financial statements of the Company.

 - Amendments to IFRS-16- IASB has issued amendments to IFRS 16 (the amendments) to provide practical relief for lessees 
in accounting for rent concessions. The amendments are effective for periods beginning on or after June 1, 2020, with 
earlier application permitted. Under the standard’s previous requirements, lessees assess whether rent concessions are 
lease modifications and, if so, apply the specific guidance on accounting for lease modifications. This generally involves 
remeasuring the lease liability using the revised lease payments and a revised discount rate. In light of the effects of the 
COVID-19 pandemic, and the fact that many lessees are applying the standard for the first time in their financial 
statements, the Board has provided an optional practical expedient for lessees. Under the practical expedient, lessees are 
not required to assess whether eligible rent concessions are lease modifications, and instead are permitted to account for 
them as if they were not lease modifications. Rent concessions are eligible for the practical expedient if they occur as a 
direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and if all the following criteria are met:    

  - the change in lease payments results in revised consideration for the lease that is substantially the same as, or less 
than, the consideration for the lease immediately preceding the change;    

       
  - any reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due on or before June 30, 2021; and  

      
  - there is no substantive change to the other terms and conditions of the lease.
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 - Classification of liabilities as current or non-current (Amendments to IAS 1) effective for the annual period beginning on 
or after January 1, 2022. These amendments in the standards have been added to further clarify when a liability is classified 
as current. The standard also amends the aspect of classification of liability as non-current by requiring the assessment of 
the entity’s right at the end of the reporting period to defer the settlement of liability for at least twelve months after the 
reporting period.  An entity shall apply those amendments retrospectively in accordance with IAS 8.   
     

 - Amendment to IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’ – Definition of a Business (effective for business combinations for which 
the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of annual period beginning on or after January 1, 2020). The IASB has 
issued amendments aiming to resolve the difficulties that arise when an entity determines whether it has acquired a 
business or a group of assets.  The amendments clarify that to be considered a business, an acquired set of activities and 
assets must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability to 
create outputs. The amendments include an election to use a concentration test. The standard is effective for transactions 
in the future and therefore would not have an impact on past financial statements.     
     

 - Onerous Contracts – Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments to IAS 37) effective for the annual period beginning on 
or after January 1, 2022 amends IAS 1 by mainly adding paragraphs which clarifies what comprise the cost of fulfilling a 
contract, Cost of fulfilling a contract is relevant when determining whether a contract is onerous.  An entity is required to 
apply the amendments to contracts for which it has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the annual 
reporting period in which it first applies the amendments (the date of initial application). Restatement of comparative 
information is not required, instead the amendments require an entity to recognize the cumulative effect of initially 
applying the amendments as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings or other component of equity, as 
appropriate, at the date of initial application.     

       
 - Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to IAS 16) effective for the annual period 

beginning on or after January 1, 2022. Clarifies that sales proceeds and cost of items produced while bringing an item of 
property, plant and equipment to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner 
intended by management e.g. when testing etc, are recognized in profit or loss in accordance with applicable Standards. 
The entity measures the cost of those items applying the measurement requirements of IAS 2. The standard also removes 
the requirement of deducting the net sales proceeds from cost of testing. An entity shall apply those amendments 
retrospectively, but only to items of property, plant and equipment that are brought to the location and condition 
necessary for them to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management on or after the beginning of the 
earliest period presented in the financial statements in which the entity first applies the amendments. The entity shall 
recognize the cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained 
earnings (or other component of equity, as appropriate) at the beginning of that earliest period presented.  
     

 The following annual improvements to IFRS standards 2018-2020 are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 
January 1, 2022.      

       
 - IFRS 9 – The amendment clarifies that an entity includes only fees paid or received between the entity (the borrower) and 

the lender, including fees paid or received by either the entity or the lender on the other’s behalf, when it applies the ‘10 
per cent’ test in paragraph B3.3.6 of IFRS 9 in assessing whether to derecognize a financial liability.   
     

 - IFRS 16 – The amendment partially amends Illustrative Example 13 accompanying IFRS 16 by excluding the illustration of 
reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the lessor. The objective of the amendment is to resolve any potential 
confusion that might arise in lease incentives.     

       
 The above amendments are not likely to have an impact on these financial statements.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES      
      

 The significant accounting policies are consistently applied in the preparation of these financial statements as per those applied in 
earlier years presented.      

       
3.1 Operating fixed assets      
       
3.1.1 Owned      
       
 Operating fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any, whereas costs include expenditures 

that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets.       
    

 Depreciation is charged to the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income using straight line method so as to 
write off the historical cost of the assets over their estimated useful lives at the rates stated in note 4. 

       
 Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in which an asset is put to use and on disposals up to the month 

immediately preceeding disposal.
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 Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as and when 
incurred. Major renewals and improvements, if any, are capitalized when it is probable that respective future economic benefits will 
flow to the Company.      

       
 Asset's residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if impact on depreciation is significant. 

      
 An item of operating fixed assets is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use 

or disposal. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the sale proceeds with the carrying amount of the 
relevant assets. These are recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.   
      

3.1.2 Impairment      
       
 The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that assets may be impaired. If such indication exists, 

the carrying amounts of such assets are reviewed to assess whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amount. 
Where carrying values exceed the respective recoverable amounts, assets are written down to their recoverable amounts and the 
resulting impairment charge is recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. The recoverable 
amount of property and equipment is the greater of fair value less cost to sell and value in use.    
      

3.2 Long term investment       
       
 Subsidiary       
       
 Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. The Company controls an entity when it is exposed to or has right to variable 

returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.  
      

 Investment in a subsidiary company is initially recognized at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent 
to initial recognition, the investment is measured at FVOCI and changes therein, other than impairment losses, are recognized in 
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the fair value reserve being revenue reserve in nature.    
      

 Equity accounted associate      
       
 Associates are all entities over which the Company has significant influence but no control. Significant influence is presumed to 

exist when the Company holds 20 percent or more of the voting power of another entity. Investments in associates are accounted 
for using the equity method of accounting and are initially recognized at cost which includes transaction costs.   
      

 Subsequent to initial recognition, the financial statements include the Company's share of the profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income of equity accounted investee, until the date on which significant influence ceases. Distributions received 
from an investee reduce the carrying amount of the investment. Where there has been a change recognized directly in the equity 
of the associate, the Company recognizes its share of any changes and discloses this, when applicable, in the statement of changes 
in equity. When the Company’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other 
unsecured receivables, the Company does not recognize future losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on 
behalf of the associate.      

       
 Unrealized gains arising from transactions with equity accounted investees are eliminated against the investment to the extent of 

the Company's interest. Unrealized losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealized gain but only to the extent that there is no 
evidence of impairment.      

       
 The investment in associates’ carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if its carrying amount is 

greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

3.3 Fair value measurement      
       
 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 

market participants at the measurement date.      
       
 The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the 

asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. The fair value for financial instruments 
traded in active markets at the reporting date is based on their quoted price, without any deduction for transaction costs. 
      

 For all other financial instruments not traded in an active market, the fair value is determined by using valuation techniques 
deemed to be appropriate in the circumstances. Valuation techniques include the market approach (i.e., using recent arm’s length 
market transactions adjusted as necessary and reference to the current market value of another instrument that is substantially 
the same) and the income approach (i.e., discounted cash flow analysis making as much use of available and supportable market 
data as possible).
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 All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in these financial statements are categorized within the fair 
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value:   
      

 Level 1 :  Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company can access 
at measurement date.    

       
 Level 2 :   Inputs other than quoted prices included in level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. 

as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).    
       
 Level 3 :  Inputs for the assets or liability that are not based on observable market data (observable inputs).  

     
 The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting year during which the 

change occurs.      
       
3.4 Revenue and other income      
       
 - Profit / interest on bank deposits, loan and advances is recorded on accrual basis.     

      
 - Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive dividend is established.     

      
 - Miscellaneous income, if any, is recognized on receipt basis.     
       
3.5 Taxation      
       
3.5.1 Current       
       
 Provision for current year taxation is based on the taxable income determined in accordance with the prevailing law for taxation 

at the current rate of tax, after taking into account applicable tax credits, rebates, exemptions available, if any.

3.5.2 Deferred         
 

 Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method on all temporary differences arising between the tax bases 
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for 
all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will 
be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilized. Deferred tax is 
calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the year when the differences reverse, based on tax rates that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax is charged or credited to the statement of profit or loss and 
other comprehensive income except to the extent it relates to items recognized directly in equity / other comprehensive income 
in which case it is recognized in equity / other comprehensive income.      
 

3.6 Provisions        
 

 A provision is recognized when the Company has a present, legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, if it is 
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable 
estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best 
estimate.        
 

3.7 Foreign currency         
 

3.7.1 Foreign currency transactions        
 

 Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into US$ (the functional currency) using the exchange rates prevailing at the date 
of transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into US$ using the exchange rate 
at the reporting date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the 
translations of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the statement of profit or loss 
and other comprehensive income.

3.7.2 Foreign currency translations        
 

 The results and financial position of the Company are translated into PKR (presentation currency) as follows:

 (i)  assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position presented are translated at the closing rate at that reporting 
date;        

 (ii)  income and expenses for each profit and loss account are translated at average exchange rates; and   
 

 (iii) all resulting exchange differences are recognized as a separate component of equity being revenue reserve in nature.
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3.8 Financial instruments        
 

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instruments. The Company derecognizes a financial asset or a portion of financial asset when, and only when, the Company losses 
control of the contractual rights that comprise the financial asset or portion of financial asset. A financial liability or part of 
financial liability is derecognized from the balance sheet when, and only when, it is extinguished i.e. when the obligation specified in 
the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. Any gain or loss on the recognition or de-recognition of the financial assets and 
financial liabilities is taken to statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.    
 

3.8.1 Financial assets        
 

 Following are included in financial assets:        
 

 - Loans, advances and other receivables        

  These are classified at amortised cost and are initially recognised when they are originated and measured at fair value of 
consideration receivable. The Company recognises loss allowances for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) in respect of 
financial assets measured at amortised cost. When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased 
significantly since initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable 
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative 
information and analysis, based on the Company's historical experience of actual credit losses over past years and 
informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information. These assets are written off when there is no 
reasonable expectation of recovery. 

 
 - Cash and cash equivalents        

  For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and deposits in banks. 
  

3.8.2 Financial liabilities        
 

 These include trade and other payables which are recognized initially at fair value plus directly attributable costs, if any and 
subsequently measured at amortised costs.        
 

3.8.3 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities       
  

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset when the Company has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized 
amounts and intends either to settle these on net basis or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. The legally 
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in normal course of business and in the event 
of default, insolvency or winding up of the Company or the counterparties.       
 

3.9  Staff retirement benefits        
 

 The Company operates a defined contribution plan (i.e. recognized provident fund scheme) for all its permanent employees. Equal 
monthly contributions at the rate of 6.5% of the gross salary are made to the fund,  both by the Company and by its employees. 
The assets of the fund are held separately under the control of the Trustees. Contributions made by the Company are charged to 
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year.      
 

3.10 Dividend        
 

 Dividends declared and transfers between reserves made subsequent to the reporting date are considered as non-adjusting events 
and are recognized in the financial statements in the year in which such dividends are approved / transfers are made.

3.11  Earnings per share        
 

 The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share ("EPS") data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing 
the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares 
outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the 
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. 

  
3.12  Operating segment        

 
 Segment results that are reported to the company's Chief Executive Officer (CEO), the chief operating decision maker include 

items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items, if any, 
comprise mainly corporate assets, expenses and tax assets and liabilities. Management has determined that the Company has a 
single reportable segment and therefore it has only presented entity wise disclosures.
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3.13  Contingent liabilities        
  

 A contingent liability is disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation as a result of past events, whose existence will be 
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence, of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of 
the Company; or the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that arises from past events, but it is not probable 
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, or the amount of the 
obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

5.1  This represents investment in TRGIL, an associate incorporated in Bermuda having par value and additional paid up share capital of 
US$0.01 and US$ 0.99 per share respectively. The percentage of the Company's holding in TRGIL's shares is 56.86% (June 30, 2019: 
57.32%) with voting power of 46.03% (June 30, 2019: 57.16%). The percentage of holding on a fully diluted basis, after taking into 
account all the classes of shares that will potentially participate in equity distribution, is 45.32% (June 30, 2019: 45.32%).

4. OPERATING FIXED ASSETS
Computers
and office 
equipment

Motor
vehicles

As at June 30, 2018
Cost 1,159 110 1,269
Accumulated depreciation (1,133) (110) (1,243)
Net book value 26 - 26

Year ended June 30, 2019
Opening net book value 26 - 26
Addition 127 - 127
Depreciation charge for the year (52) - (52)
Net book value 101 - 101

As at June 30, 2019
Cost 1,286 110 1,396
Accumulated depreciation (1,185) (110) (1,295)
Net book value 101 - 101

Year ended June 30, 2020
Opening net book value 101 - 101
Depreciation charge for the year (42) - (42)
Net book value 59 - 59

As at June 30, 2020
Cost 1,286 110 1,396
Accumulated depreciation (1,227) (110) (1,337)
Net book value 59 - 59

Annual rate of depreciation 33.33% 20%

5. LONG TERM INVESTMENT June 30, June 30,
2020 2019

Note

The Resource Group International Limited (TRGIL)
Unquoted 60,450,000 (2019: 60,450,000) 
Series B Preferred Shares 

- Equity accounted investee 5.1 & 5.4 21,778,686 -
- Fair value through OCI - subsidiary 5.2 - 16,392,528

21,778,686 16,392,528

----- (Rupees in '000) -----

Owned

------------------------ (Rupees in '000) ------------------------

Total
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5.3  This represents change in fair value of investment in subsidiary classified as FVOCI till the date of loss of control i.e. June 15, 2020. 
The fair valuation was determined by external independent valuer having appropriate recognised qualification and relevant 
experience.  Assumptions used for the purpose of valuation of investments are disclosed in note 18.3.3.

 This represents loan to TRG (Private) Limited, an indirect associate of the Company, for working capital and operational needs. 
The loan will be maturing in November 2020, carries markup of 15% per annum and is secured by letter of guarantee from The 
Resource Group International Limited, associate of the Company. During the year the maximum balance due in respect of these 
loans was Rs. 1,579 million (2019: Rs. 1,649 million).

5.2 Reconciliation of carrying amount of investment - FVOCI June 30, June 30,
2020 2019

Note

Opening balance 16,392,528 16,138,471
Changes in fair value 5.3 4,266,032 (3,694,284)
Foreign currency translation difference 620,854 3,948,341
Reclassified as equity accounted investee 5.4 (21,279,414) -
Closing balance - 16,392,528

5.4 Reconciliation of carrying amount of equity accounted investee

Initial recognition on June 15, 2020 21,279,414 -
Share of profit in equity accounted investee 86,949 -
Foreign currency translation difference 412,323 -
Closing balance 21,778,686 -

5.5 Summarized financial information of equity accounted investee

Total assets 65,214,393 -
Total liabilities (26,912,097) -
Net assets 38,302,296 -
Carrying amount of interest in associate 21,778,686 -

Total income 

Profit after tax 

Total comprehensive income 

Company’s share of total comprehensive income 

6. LONG TERM LOAN TO RELATED PARTY - considered good June 30, June 30,
2020 2019

Loan amount 1,579,646 1,579,646
Less: current maturity (1,579,646) -

- 1,579,646

6.1 ACCRUED MARK-UP

Accrued mark-up 908 -
Less: current maturity (908) -

- -

This represents the markup on loan to TRG (Private) Limited as referred to in note 6.

----- (Rupees in '000) -----

----- (Rupees in '000) -----

For the period 
from June 16, 2020

to June 30, 2020

268,612

152,917

152,917

86,949
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7.1 The balance in saving account carries markup ranging from 4% to 6% per annum (2019: 5% to 6% per annum) under conventional 
banking.  

8.1  These shares were issued in exchange of 1,636,000 shares of The Resource Group International Limited of US$1 each in 2003.

11. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS        
   

11.1  Contingencies        
   

11.1.1 As at June 30, 2020, returns of income tax up to tax year 2019 have been filed by the Company. However, deemed assessments 
for the tax years 2003 and 2004 had been amended by the Taxation Officer (TO) whereby the exemption claimed under clause 
(101) Part I of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the Ordinance) were rejected in both these years and 
tax demands of Rs. 0.09 million and Rs. 0.60 million had been created respectively. The first appeal filed by the Company before 
Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) against the amended orders had been rejected. The Company preferred second appeal 
in both the years before the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) which decided the appeal in the favor of the Company 
through the consolidated order dated March 28, 2013. Application has been filed with the tax authorities for passing the appeal 
effect orders which are currently pending. Accordingly, no provision has been made for the said matters in these financial 
statements.

7. CASH AND BANK BALANCES June 30, June 30,
2020 2019

Balance with bank in
- current account 625 625
- saving account 2,676 1,047

3,301 1,672
Cash in hand 7 13

3,308 1,685

8. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorized share capital
- Ordinary class 'A' shares of Rs.10 each 720,000,000 7,200,000 720,000,000 7,200,000
- Ordinary class 'B' shares of Rs.10 each 13,000,000 130,000 13,000,000 130,000

733,000,000 7,330,000 733,000,000 7,330,000

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital
Ordinary class 'A' shares of Rs. 10 each 
- allotted for consideration paid in cash 535,765,687 5,357,657 535,765,687 5,357,657
- allotted for consideration other 

than cash (note 8.1) 9,624,978 96,250 9,624,978 96,250
545,390,665 5,453,907 545,390,665 5,453,907

9. ACCRUED AND OTHER LIABILITIES June 30, June 30,
2020 2019

Accrued expenses 6,496 6,552
Unclaimed dividend 592 592
Payable to retirement benefit fund - 18
Other liabilities 2,382 2,367

9,470 9,529

10. PAYABLE TO RELATED PARTY - current account - unsecured

----- (Rupees in '000) -----

June 30, 2019

--- (Rupees in '000) ---

June 30, 2020
(Rupees in 

'000)
(Rupees in '000)Number 

of shares
Number of 

shares

This represents Rs. 4.8 million (2019: Rs. 4.6 million) payable to TRGIL, an associate of the Company.
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11.1.2 During 2017, the Company was selected for audit under Section 177 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 by the Commissioner Inland 
Revenue (CIR) through his noticed dated 18 November 2016 for tax year 2011. While finalizing the audit proceedings, the 
Assessing Officer passed an amended order under Section 122(1) of the Ordinance dated 30 May 2017 whereby the income was 
assessed at Rs. 1,007 million and tax demand of Rs. 352.64 million was created. Consequently, the Company filed an appeal before 
the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) CIR(A), who vide his order dated 22 June 2017, remanded back the case to the 
Commissioner Inland revenue (who holds the jurisdiction over the case) for fresh adjudication. After fresh proceedings, the 
revised assessment order dated 31 July 2017 was passed under Section 124(1) of the Ordinance wherein the Officer Inland 
Revenue (OIR) disregarded the declared loss of Rs. 14.388 million and assessed the revised income at Rs. 0.751 million and 
created tax demand of Rs. 0.272 million. Management is confident that the Company will not incur said liability, as sufficient 
refundable amounts arising from previous years against which such liability will be adjusted. The Company has preferred appeal 
against the above order to the CIR(A). The said appeal is pending adjudication. Accordingly no provision has been made in this 
regard in these financial statements.

  
11.2  Commitments        

   
 There were no commitments outstanding as at June 30, 2020 and 2019.

13.2 These include Management Fee of Rs. 210 million (2019: Rs. 278 million) charged under the Managerial Services Agreement with 
TRGIL and exchange loss of Rs. 0.23 million (2019: Rs. 2.45 million).

12. REVENUE June 30, June 30,
2020 2019

Note

Interest income on
- Bank balances 12.1 229 63
- Long term loan 6 236,947 240,906

237,176 240,969

12.1 Interest income is earned from bank deposits.

13. ADMINISTRATIVE AND OTHER EXPENSES

Auditors' remuneration 13.1 5,234 5,299
Other expenses - net 13.2 229,203 233,277

234,437 238,576

13.1 Auditors' remuneration

Audit fee 1,265 1,265
Limited review and other certifications 3,380 3,480
Sales tax 395 380
Out of pocket expenses 194 174

5,234 5,299

14. TAXATION

For the year:
 - current 466 526
 - deferred 13,057 12

13,523 538

--- (Rupees in '000) ---
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14.3 This includes deferred tax liability recognized on investment in TRGIL classified at FVOCI till the date of loss of control. Deferred 
tax charge / (income) has been recorded in other comprehensive income amounting to Rs. 928 million [June 30, 2019: Rs. (851) 
million] and Rs. 135 million (June, 2019: Rs. 812 million) against investment classified as FVOCI and foreign currency translation 
difference, related to that valuation, respectively. Further, it also includes deferred tax charge amounting to Rs. 75 million (June 30, 
2019: nil) on equity accounted investee.

14.2 Deferred tax - net

Deferred tax liability comprises of taxable / (deductible) temporary differences in respect of the following:

Taxable temporary differences
- Investment at FVOCI - subsidiary 14.3 - 2,791,433
-  Equity accounted investee 14.3 3,929,221 -

Deductible temporary differences
-  Accelerated tax depreciation (38) (53)

3,929,183 2,791,380

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE June 30, June 30,
2020 2019

Profit for the year 76,165 1,855

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in
  issue during the year 545,390,665 545,390,665

Earnings per share 0.140 0.003

15.1

 ---- (Number of shares) ---- 

---------- (Rupee) ----------

There is no dilution effect of the potential ordinary shares on the Company's earnings per share.

------ (Rupees in '000) ------

June 30, June 30,
2020 2019

14.1 Reconciliation of income tax expense and accounting profit 

Profit before taxation 89,688 2,393
Taxation (13,523) (538)
Profit after taxation 76,165 1,855

Applicable tax rate 29 29

Income tax using applicable tax rate 26,010 694
Effect of tax on reduced rate - (2)
Effect of tax on income charged at different rate (12,173) -
Others (314) (154)

13,523 538

------ (Rupees in '000) ------

-------- (percentage) --------

--- (Rupees in '000) ---Note
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16. CASH USED IN OPERATIONS June 30, June 30,
2020 2019

Profit for the year before taxation 89,688 2,393
Adjustments for :

Depreciation 42 52
Interest on loan and return on bank balances (237,176) (297,389)
Share of profit in equity accounted investee (86,949) -
Management fee 210,000 278,000
Reversal of provision - (59,486)

Working capital changes 16.1 169 3,907
(113,914) (74,916)

(24,226) (72,523)

16.1 Working capital changes

(Decrease) / increase in current liabilities:
Accrued and other liabilities (59) 601
Payable to related party - current account 228 3,306

169 3,907

------ (Rupees in '000) ------

17. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES     
     

 No remuneration was paid by the Company to the Chief Executive and directors (number of directors:10 including Chief 
Executive) during current and last year.        
    

18. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS        
    

 Financial risk management        
    

 The Board of Directors of the Company has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk 
management framework. The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:  
    

 - Credit risk        
    

 - Liquidity risk        
    

 - Market risk        
    

18.1 Credit risk        
    

 Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other party to incur 
a financial loss, without taking into account the fair value of any collateral. Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of 
counter parties are engaged in similar business activities or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet 
contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations of credit risk 
indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company's performance to developments affecting a particular industry. 

     
 Exposure to credit risk        

    
 Credit risk of the Company arises principally from long term deposit, loan to related party, markup accrued thereon and balances 

with banks.        
    

 Bank balances amounting to Rs. 3.31 million (2019: Rs. 1.68 million) are placed with banks having a short term credit rating of 
"A-1+" and above.

Note
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 The maximum exposure to credit risk as at June 30, 2020, along with comparative is tabulated below: 

18.1.1 Management does not expect any losses from non-performance by the counterparties.     
       

 The Company does not hold any collateral against these assets except for the loan to related party which is secured by a letter of 
guarantee as mentioned in note 6.        

        
 Financial assets do not contain any impaired or non-performing assets.      

       
18.1.2 The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date by geographic region was as follows:

18.2 Liquidity risk       
        
 Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial obligations as they fall due. Liquidity risk 

arises because of the possibility that the Company could be required to pay its liabilities earlier than expected or difficulty in 
raising funds to meet commitments associated with financial liabilities as they fall due.      
       

 A major portion of the Company's financial liabilities are obligations due to the Company's related parties, therefore the 
management believes that the Company is not exposed to liquidity risk regarding those balances as the terms of repayments can 
be negotiated. Further, management believes that the Company will be able to fulfill its other financial obligations from the 
Company's future cash flows.        

        
 The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including interest payments:

Financial assets June 30, June 30,
2020 2019

Long term deposit 75 75

Accrued mark up - current portion 908 -
Loan to related party 1,579,646 1,579,646

Balances with banks 3,301 1,672
1,583,930 1,581,393

------ (Rupees in '000) ------

June 30, June 30,
2020 2019

------ (Rupees in '000) ------

Domestic 1,583,930 1,581,393

Carrying Contractual Maturity
amount cash flows up to one

year

Financial liabilities
Accrued and other liabilities 8,878 8,878 8,878
Payable to related party - current account 4,807 4,807 4,807

13,685 13,685 13,685

Carrying Contractual Maturity 
amount cash flows up to one

year

Financial liabilities
Accrued and other liabilities               8,919 8,919 8,919
Payable to related party - current account               4,579 4,579 4,579

13,498 13,498 13,498

-------------- (Rupees in '000) --------------

-------------- (Rupees in '000) --------------

2020

2019
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18.3 Market risk       
        
 Market risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument or future cash flows from a financial instrument may fluctuate as a 

result of changes in market interest rates or the market price due to a change in credit rating of the issuer or the instrument, 
change in market sentiments, speculative activities, supply and demand of securities and liquidity in the market. The Company is 
exposed to currency risk and interest rate risk only.        

        
18.3.1 Currency risk       
        
 Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of financial asset or a liability will fluctuate due to a change in foreign exchange 

rates. It arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transactions entered into foreign currencies.    
       

 Exposure to currency risk       
        
 The Company primarily has foreign currency exposures in PKR, however, the Company has not hedged its foreign currency 

exposures as the Company believes that foreign currency exposure is not significant to the Company's financial position and 
performance.        

        
 A one percent strengthening / (weakening) of the US Dollar against Rupee at 30 June would have increased / (decreased) equity 

and statement of profit or loss account by Rs. 0.05 million (2019: Rs. 0.05 million). This analysis assumes that all other variables, in 
particular interest rates, remaining constant. The analysis was performed on the same basis for 2019.    
       

 The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on profit or loss for the year and assets / liabilities of 
the Company.       

        
18.3.2 Interest rate risk       
        
 Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 

market interest rates.       
        
 Management believes that interest rate exposure is not significant to the Company's financial position.   

       
18.3.3 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities        
        
 When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses market observable data as far as possible. Fair values are 

categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques.   
       

 If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair 
value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is 
significant to the entire measurement.       

        
 For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements at fair value on a recurring basis, management recognizes 

transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting year during which the change has occurred. There 
were no transfers between different levels of fair values mentioned above.

 The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the 
fair value:

Fair value

Financial assets not measured at fair value
Long term investment - 21,778,686 - -
Current maturity of long term loan - 1,579,646 - -
Current maturity of accrued mark-up - 908 - -
Long term deposit - 75 - -
Cash and bank balances - 3,308 - -

Financial liabilities not measured at 
fair value

Accrued and other liabilities - - 8,878 -
Payable to related party - current account - - 4,807 -

June 30, 2020

Cost / 
amortized 

cost

Other 
financial 
liabilities

Level 3

Carrying amount

----------------------- (Rupees in '000) -----------------------

Other 
financial 

assets
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Fair value

Financial assets measured at fair value
Long term investment 16,392,528 - - 16,392,528

Financial assets not measured at fair value
Long term loan to related party - 1,579,646 - -
Long term deposit - 75 - -
Cash and bank balances - 1,685 - -

Financial liabilities not measured at 
fair value

Accrued and other liabilities - - 8,919 -
Payable to related party - current account - - 4,579 -

Level 3

----------------------- (Rupees in '000) -----------------------

Other financial 
assets

Amortized cost
Other 

financial 
liabilities

June 30, 2019
Carrying amount

 Management assessed that the fair values of cash & cash equivalents, loan and accrued markup receivable thereon, payables and 
other current liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.  
       

 Valuation models for valuing securities for which there is no active market requires significant unobservable inputs and a higher 
degree of management judgement and estimation in the determination of fair value,  including but not limited to selection of the 
appropriate valuation model, determination of expected future cash flows selection of discount rates.    
       

 Management has used discounted cash flow approach while valuing underlying investee (included in these financial statements 
under Long Term Investment) which holds unquoted equity portfolio. The discounted cash flow approach includes significant 
unobservable inputs such as forecast of annual revenue growth averaging 20.7% (2019: averaging 20.5%), forecast of EBITDA 
margin of underlying unquoted equity portfolios 25.7% (2019: averaging 22.8%), discount rates 15% (2019: averaging 14.9%), 
terminal value growth rate 3.1% (2019: averaging 3.1%) etc. which are sensitive to fair value measurement of underlying investee 
company. If the valuation assumptions (significant unobservable inputs) would be changed, the fair value of investment and other 
comprehensive income would decrease or increase respectively. 

19. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT       
        
 The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern in order 

to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the 
cost of capital.       

        
 In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell 

assets to reduce debt.        
        
 The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.      

       
20. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES       
        
 Related parties comprise of associates, subsidiaries, directors and their close family members, staff retirement benefit fund and key 

management personnel of the Company. Transactions with related parties are carried out on agreed basis and are settled in 
ordinary course of business. Remuneration and benefits to executive of the Company are in accordance with the terms of the 
employment while contribution to the provident fund is in accordance with staff service rules.

 Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the 
activities of the Company. The Company considers its Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary, 
Non-Executive Directors and departmental heads to be its key management personnel. There are no transactions with key 
management personnel other than their terms of employment / entitlement. 
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 Transactions with related parties during the year, other than those which have been disclosed elsewhere in these financial 
statements, are as follows:

20.1 The investments out of provident fund of the Company have been made in accordance with the provisions  of Section 218 of the 
Companies Act, 2017 and the rules formulated for this purpose.       
 

21. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES        
 

 As at June 30, 2020, the Company had one employee (2019: one employee). Average number of employee was one (2019: one 
employee) during the year ended June 30, 2020.        
 

22. GENERAL        
 

 The figures have been rounded off to nearest thousand rupees unless otherwise stated.     
 

22.1  Corresponding figures        
 

 Corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever necessary, for the purpose of comparison. There have been 
no significant rearrangements and reclassifications in these  financial statements.     
 

23. DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE        
 

 These  financial statements were authorized for issue on November 05, 2020 by the board of directors of the Company.

June 30, June 30,
2020 2019

Interest income on loan 236,947 240,906

Share of profit from equity accounted investee 86,949 -

---- (Rupees in '000) ----

Transaction with associates
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